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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

V.

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
and
DIVISION OF STATE POLICE of the NEW JERSEY DEPARTME OF LAW AND PUBLIC
SAFETY,
Defendants.

CIVIL NO. 99-5970(MLC)

JOINT APPLICATION FOR ENTRY OF CONSENT DECREE

Plaintiff, the United States, and Defendants, tte#eSof New Jersey and the Division of State Palice
the New Jersey Department of Law and Public Safegpectfully move this Court for entry of the
attached Consent Decree.

The United States has simultaneously filed its Gampagainst the Defendants alleging violations of
42 U.S.C. 814141 and 42 U.S.C. 83789d(c). The Caimiphlleges a pattern or practice of conduct by
troopers of the New Jersey State Police that depmersons of rights, privileges, or immunitiesused
or protected by the Constitution and the laws efltmited States. Defendants deny that the StateePol
has engaged in a pattern or practice of condutttarives persons of rights, privileges, or imntiesi
secured or protected by the Constitution and lawiseoUnited States.

The parties seek to enter into this Decree joiftththe purpose of avoiding the risks and burddns o
litigation, and to support vigorous, lawful, anddascriminatory traffic enforcement that promotes
traffic safety and assists law enforcement to ditérdrugs and other contraband, arrest fugitiaes,
enforce firearms and other criminal statutes.

The United States and the State of New Jersey &gre®d upon a proposed Consent Decree that would
resolve all claims in the United States' Complaiie proposed Decree would address the claimsin th
United States' Complaint by amending certain pedicpractices, and procedures relating to the mmanne
in which the State of New Jersey manages and agsetia¢ New Jersey State Police.

The proposed Decree addresses the following magelisy requirements and limitations on the use of
race in law enforcement activities and the procesluised for conducting motor vehicle searches;
documentation of traffic stops including post-spppcedures and enforcement actions; supervisory
measures to promote civil rights integrity; procexufor receiving, investigating, and resolving
misconduct allegations; training; responsibilittdghe Office of the New Jersey Attorney General
concerning the New Jersey State Police; publicrtempby the State Police about its law enforcement
activities; and the establishment of an independwentitor to review and analyze implementation &f th
Decree by the State.

Specifically, the proposed Decree includes thewlhg provisions
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1) Policy Requirements (1126-283tate troopers may not rely to any degree onabe or national or
ethnic origin of motorists in selecting vehicles fiaffic stops and in deciding upon the scope and
substance of post-stop actions, except wheretstatpers are on the loakut for a specific suspect w
has been identified in part by his or her raceatiomal or ethnic origin. The State Police shaftaoue

to require that troopers make a request for cortsesgarch only when they possess reasonable
suspicion that a search will reveal evidence afrae, and all consent searches must be based on the
driver or passenger giving written consent priothi® initiation of the search.

2) Traffic Stop Documentation (129-34tate troopers engaged in patrol activities woltuiment the
race, ethnic origin, and gender of all motor vehidtivers who are the subject of a traffic sto also
will record information about the reason for eatdpsand any post-stop action that is taken (inclgdi
the issuance of a ticket or warning, asking thacleloccupants to exit the vehicle and friskingnthe
consensual and non-consensual vehicle searchespfufsece, and arrests).

3) Supervisory Review of Individual Traffic Stops (§6®): Supervisors regularly will review trooper
reports concerning post-stop enforcement actiodgpamcedures, and patrol car video tapes of traffic
stops, to ensure that troopers are employing appteractices and procedures. Where concerns,
supervisors may require that the trooper be coedsetceive additional training, or that some other
non-disciplinary action be taken. Supervisors abso refer specific incidents for further investigat
where appropriate.

4) Supervisory Review of Patterns of Conduct (1140-b6¢ State will develop and implement an e
warning system, called the "Management Awarenesgrem,"” that uses computerized information on
traffic stops, misconduct investigations, and othatters to assist State Police supervisors tdifgen
and modify potentially problematic behavior. Atdequarterly, State Police supervisors will conduct
reviews and analyses of computerized data and otf@mation, including data on traffic stops and
post-stop actions by race and ethnicity. Theseereviand analyses, as appropriate, may result in
supervisors implementing changes in traffic enforent criteria, training, and practices, implementin
non-disciplinary interventions for particular trap (such as supervisory counseling or additional
training), and/or requiring further assessmennwgestigation.

5) Misconduct Allegations (1157-92Jhe State Police will make complaint forms and infational
materials available at a variety of locations, wilititute a 24-hour toll-free telephone hotlinedavill
publicize the State Police toll-free number atSdlite-operated rest stops located on limited access
highways. The State also will institute proceddoeensuring that the State Police is notified of
criminal cases and civil lawsuits alleging troopgsconduct. Allegations of discriminatory traffiops
improper post-stop actions, and other significaistconduct allegations will be investigated by the
Professional Standards Bureau inside the StatedPoliby the State Attorney General's Office. All
investigations will be properly documented. Wheraisconduct allegation is substantiated concerning
prohibited discrimination or certain other serimisconduct, discipline shall be imposed. Where a
misconduct allegation is not substantiated, theeSRalice will consider whether non-disciplinary
supervisory steps are appropriate.

6) Training (1193-109):The State Police will continue to implement measuo improve training for
recruits and incumbent troopers. The training adtiress such matters as supervisory issues,
communication skills, cultural diversity, and thendiscrimination requirements of the Decree. The
State Police also will take steps to continue tprme its trooper coach program for new troopehe T
Independent Monitor selected by the parties widlleate all training currently provided by the State
Police regarding traffic stops, and will make recoemdations for improvements.

7) Auditing by the New Jersey Attorney General's ©1ff111C-113): The State Attorney Genera
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Office will have special responsibility for ensugirmplementation of the Decree. The Office will
conduct various audits of State Police performamtéch will include contacting samples of persons
who were the subject of a State Police traffic stopvaluate whether the stops were appropriately
conducted and documented. The Office also will e8thte Police implementation of the Management
Awareness Program, and procedures used for regeivivestigating, and resolving misconduct
allegations.

8) State Police Public Reports (f114)he State Police will issue semiannual public respcontaining
aggregate statistics on certain law enforcementites, including traffic stop statistics.

9) Independent Monitor (19115-121An Independent Monitor, who will be an agent o tourt, will

be selected by the United States and the Statewflérsey to monitor and report on the State's
implementation of the Decree. The responsibiliaEthe Monitor will include evaluating samples of
trooper incident reports, supervisory reviews efdents, and misconduct investigations, supervisors
use of the Management Awareness Program, and éhefumn-disciplinary procedures to address at-
risk conduct.

10) Decree Term (1131)The basic term of the Decree will be five yeamyéver, based on the State's
record of compliance, the United States and thepeddent Monitor may agree to a request by the
to shorten the term of the Decree if the Statebess in substantial compliance for at least twasiea

Joint entry of this Decree is in the public intérgace it provides for expeditious remedial atyinand
avoids the diversion of federal and State resouxwasversarial actions by the parties. Additionéthe
proposed Decree does not conflict with the coNecbargaining agreements between the State Police
and its troopers, as noted in the Decree at 1128.

For the reasons discussed above, entry of the Bectawful and appropriate. Therefore, the United
States and the State jointly move for entry of@o@sent Decree.

Respectfully submitted:
FOR THE PLAINTIFF, THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA:

ROBERT J. CLEARY
United States Attorney
District of New Jersey

BILL LANN LEE

Acting Assistant Attorney Attorney General
Civil Rights Division

U.S. Department of Justice

SUSAN C. CASSELL

Deputy Chief

Civil Division

United States Attorney
District of New Jersey

970 Broad Street, ¥ Floor
Federal Building
Newark, New Jersey 071
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973/645-2700

STEVEN H. ROSENBAUM
Chief

MARK A. POSNER

KELLI M. EVANS

Trial Attorneys

Special Litigation Section
Civil Rights Division

U.S. Department of Justice
P.O. Box 66400
Washington, D.C. 20035-6400
202/307-1388

FOR THE DEFENDANTS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, and DIMIN OF STATE POLICE, NEW
JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY:

JOHN J. FARMER, JR.

Attorney General

State of New Jersey

Hughes Justice Complex, 8 West
25 Market Street

Post Office Box 081

Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0085
609/292-4925

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

V.

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
and
DIVISION OF STATE POLICE OF THE NEW JERSEY DEPARTME OF LAW AND PUBLIC
SAFETY,
Defendants.

CIVIL NO. 99-5970(MLC)

CONSENT DECREE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

http://www.nj.goVv/Ips/jointapp.ht 1/10/200°



U.S. v. New Jersey Joint Application for Entry adr@Sent Decree and Consent De

INTRODUCTION 1
Definitions 4

POLICY REQUIREMENTS 7

INCIDENT DOCUMENTATION AND REVIEW 9
Documentation 9
Supervisory Review of Individual Reports andidlents 16

SUPERVISORY MEASURES TO PROMOTE CIVIL RIGHTS
INTEGRITY AND REDUCE POLICE MISCONDUCT 18

Management Awareness Program 18
Supervisory and Management Reviews 20
MISCONDUCT INVESTIGATIONS, ANALYSES, AND RESOLUTION 23
Public Information and Outreach 23
Receipt of Misconduct Allegations 24
Professional Standards Bureau 27
The Investigations Component 27
Misconduct Investigations 28
Evaluating and Resolving Misconduct Allegai@&0
Disciplinary Procedures 32
Tracking, Records, and Reporting 33
TRAINING 33

Training Oversight and Coordination 33

Academy Training, Post-Academy Training, amdoper Coach Field Training 35

Documentation of Training 38

Page5 of 31

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE OFFICE OF THE NEW JERSEYPORNEY GENERAL 38

PUBLIC INFORMATION 39

http://www.nj.goVv/Ips/jointapp.ht

1/10/200°



U.S. v. New Jersey Joint Application for Entry adr@Sent Decree and Consent De Page6 of 31

OVERSIGHT, REPORTING AND RECORD KEEPING, AND IMPLEBNTATION 40
Independent Monitor 40
Reports and Records 42
Implementation 46

INTRODUCTION

1. The United States brings this action under 42.C. 814141 and 42 U.S.C. 83789d(c) to remedy an
alleged pattern or practice of racially discrimorgtconduct by troopers employed by the Division of
State Police of the New Jersey Department of LaavRurblic Safety (hereinafter "State Police").

2. In its Complaint, the United States alleges 8tate Police troopers engage in a pattern oripeact
conduct that deprives persons of rights, privilegesmmunities secured or protected by the
Constitution and laws of the United States, inalgdihe Fourteenth Amendment and the Omnibus
Crime Control and Safe Streets Act, as amendedhénithe United States alleges that this pattern o
practice of conduct has been made possible byathed of the State Police to adopt and implement
proper management practices and procedures. ThedJsiates alleges that the State has tolerated thi
conduct. The United States further alleges thaeSRalice policy, training, supervision and compiai
procedures allow a high degree of discretion toviddal troopers in conducting motor vehiclestops
do little to prevent individual troopers from imgerly using race to target minority drivers and
passengers. In making these allegations, the USitaigs recognizes that the majority of state go®p
perform their difficult jobs in a lawful manner.

3. Defendants in this action are the State of Newwe) and the Division of State Police of the New
Jersey Department of Law and Public Safety (hefi&naollectively, "the State").

4. The State denies that the State Police has edga@ pattern or practice of conduct that degrive
persons of rights, privileges, or immunities sedueprotected by the Constitution and laws of the
United States. The State maintains that the StalteeFhas never issued or embraced an officiacgoli
to engage in racial profiling or any other discmiatiory enforcement practices, but rather has uakien
a number of steps to prohibit such forms of disgration including, but not limited to, issuing stiamd
operating procedures banning such practices; prayid-service training programs and bulletins;
requiring state troopers to have a reasonable @aggdbefore requesting permission to search (tlyereb
imposing a prerequisite to consent searches natreghby the Constitution or laws of the Unitedt&sa
or the State of New Jersey); requiring state tredfee document the race of detained drivers and
passengers; issuing stern warnings concerningatei¢ation of records and data regarding the @Hce
detained drivers or passengers, and explainingstiat allegations would be thoroughly investigated
and referred to the Division of Criminal Justice feview and prosecution as appropriate; prohigitin
the use of "spotlighting" the occupants of motdmnigkes at night before deciding whether to initiate
stop; allocating $13.2 million for FY2000 to begire development of internal management system
fund additional related technology and support; @tdining independent experts to conduct a reat
Academy training.

5. The State further cites its recent issuanceofreports, the Interim Report of the State PoRexiew
Team Regarding Allegations of Racial Profiling, A0, 1999 (hereinafter, "Interim Report") and the
Final Report of the State Police Review Team, 2ul§999 (hereinafter, "Final Report"). These report
set forth numerous remedial steps to be implemeotethnage and supervise the actions of the
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Police to monitor integrity, to protect the public saféy ensuring the uniform and efficient
enforcement of all motor vehicle and criminal laasd to prevent conduct that deprives persons of
rights, privileges, or immunities secured or prtgddyy the Constitution or laws of the United State

6. As recommended in the Final Report, the Stasecheated a new unit within the Office of the
Attorney General, New Jersey Department of LawRnblic Safety to be headed by an assistant
attorney general/director-in-charge, reporting aiseto the Attorney General. The new unit will be
responsible, intealia, for ensuring the implementation of remedial stepd actions described in the
Interim Reportand the Final Report of the StatededReview Team, as well as implementation of the
terms of the Consent Decree.

7. In light of these ongoing efforts to addressalwegation of disparate treatment of minority ens or
passengers and the State's demonstrated commitmesing the best available practices and
procedures for police management, the State alseslany allegation that it has tolerated unlawful
conduct by state troopers.

8. The parties enter into this Decree jointly toe purpose of avoiding the risks and burdens of
litigation, and to support vigorous, lawful, anddascriminatory traffic enforcement that promotes
traffic safety and assists law enforcement to ditérdrugs and other contraband, arrest fugitiaes,
enforce firearms and other criminalstatutes. Moegppint entry of this Decree is in the publicardst
since it provides for expeditious remedial actiatyd avoids the diversion of federal and Stateuress
to adversarial actions by the parties.

9. This Court has jurisdiction of this action un@8rU.S.C. 881331 and 1345. The United States is
authorized to initiate this action pursuant to 43\C. 814141 and 42 U.S.G3&9d(c). Venue is prog
in the District of New Jersey pursuant to 28 U.SC391.

10. This Decree resolves all claims in the Uniteates' Complaint filed in this case and resolves an
claims the United States may have regarding aegedl pattern or practice of racial discrimination i
traffic enforcement that could have been raisddiattime under 42 U.S.C. § 14141 or

42 U.S.C. § 3789d(c). Accordingly, the filing oktlunited States' Complaint shall not trigger the
provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 3789d(c)(2)(E), which\pd@ that the filing of a lawsuit by the United s
alleging a violation of 42 U.S.C. 8§ 3789d(c) magule in suspension of Department of Justice funding
granted to the specific program or activity allegede in violation of this statute.

11. The United States and the State agree thater to promote law enforcement integrity, avoid
misconduct, promote community support for the Seadkce and its troopers, and promote the use of
effective, sound policing techniques, the Staté eaihtinue its efforts, as outlined in the Interim
Reportand theFinal Report, to achieve and mairgaod practices and procedures for trooper
supervision and management.

12. The United States does not allege that theanyisState Police policy that explicitly provides br
condones discriminatory law enforcement, and ackedges that a State Police standard operating
procedure issued in 1990 prohibits consideratioa alilian's race except where that "characteristi
directly and specifically related to particularmginal activity." The United States acknowledges the
State has already undertaken a number of stepegio to address the problem of racial profiling and
other forms of disparate treatment of minority drsvor passengers by state troopers, includingyditut
limited to, issuing the Interim Report and theFiR&lport.

Definitions
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13. "State trooper" means any law enforcement@ffmployed by the State Police including
supervisors.

14. "Supervisor" means a state trooper with ovatsigsponsibility for other State Police troopers.
15. "Civilian" means any person who is not a stateper.

16. "Complaint” includes an allegation by a civiliar state trooper that a state trooper engagadyin
form of misconduct. For purposes of this Decree téim does not include any allegation of
employment discrimination.

17. "Complainant" means any person who files a damjpagainst a state trooper or the State Police.

18. The term " intervention" refers to a non-difioigry interaction between a State Police superviso
and a state trooper initiated by the supervis@niable or encourage the trooper to undertake a
modification of his or her conduct. It is intendede a mechanism to promote best practices fop&n
conduct. It is not intended, and should not berpried, to be any form of disciplinary actionmay
include oral counseling; written counseling; tragni a special MVR review schedule; mandatory
professional assistance/evaluation or referrahéoState Police's Employee Assistance Program; or a
reassignment made to ensure the needs, interdstignt or effective operation of the State Polioe

to ensure the safety of the trooper or the public.

19. A "special MVR review schedule" is an interventthat consists of a temporary schedule
established for reviewing a greater number of neoaidio/video equipment (hereinafter "MVR") tapes
for a particular state trooper than otherwise waddur pursuant to the incident-specific reviews
specified by 135 and the random reviews requirefi3sy This term also may include a decision to
temporarily assign to an MVR-equipped vehicle aper who otherwise is not assigned to such a
vehicle, and then reviewing a greater number dftlo@per's MVR tapes than would otherwise be
required by 135 and 36.

20. The term "motor vehiclestop” means any instameghich a State Police trooper directs a civilian
driver operating a motor vehicle of any type travglon any highway or road to stopand the driver or
passenger(s) is detained for any period of time. fEhm"motor vehicle stop" also includes any inséan
in which a state trooper for any reason detaingufgr period of time a civilian in a motor vehicle
located in a rest stop adjacent to a limited achagsvay, regardless of whether the vehicle wagpsic
at the direction of a state trooper. As used is Becree, the term "motor vehiclestop"includesstop
based on motor vehicle violations and criminal stisp stops, but does not include checkpoint stops,
roadblock stopsor commercial vehicle inspection stops. The telso does not include routine motor
vehicle aids since motor vehicle aids do not ineawtrooper directing a driver to stop a motor gkehi

21. "Enforcement actions in connection with or dgrthe course of amotor vehicle stop" are
theissuance of a summons or a written warning tla@anaking of a custodial arrest and selecting the
charges upon which the arrest is based.

22. "Procedures in connection with or during therse of a motor vehicle stop" are the runningofa
computerized check of information that may relatéhe driver or passengers; ordering or requesting
that a driver or passengers exit the vehicle; cotmadg a protective frisk for weapons of the drioer
passengers; asking the driver or passengers feeobto search the vehicle; deploying a drug-dietect
dog to check for illegal drugs; conducting any othearch of the vehicle, the driver, or passengag;
the use of force. For purposes of the nondiscritiangolicy set forth ir{26, but not purposes of tl
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data collection and analysis requirements of thesrBe, the term also shall include questioning the
driver or passengers about any matters unrelatetbtor vehicle violations.

23. All references to collecting, reporting, or gaang information by "race/ethnicity” (or "raceletic")
mean collecting, reporting, or analyzing informatigsing the followingategories: White, Black,
Hispanic, Asian, and American Indian.

24. The terms "document” and "record" include ailitings and recordings" as defined by Federal
Rules of Evidence Rule §1001(l).

25. "Privilege" is defined as in Federal Rule ofde&nce §501.

POLICY REQUIREMENTS

26. Except in the "suspect-specific" ("be on thaklmut" or "BOLO") situation described below, state
troopers shall continue to be prohibited from cdasing in any fashion and to any degree the race or
national or ethnic origin of civilian drivers orgsengers in deciding which vehicles to subjechio a
motor vehicle stop and in deciding upon the scapgibstance of any enforcement action or
procedurein connection with or during the coursarabtor vehicle stop. Where state troopers are
seeking to detain, apprehend, or otherwise be @fothkout for one or more specific suspects whaehav
been identified or described in part by race oromal or ethnic origin, state troopers may relypart on
race or national or ethnic origin in determiningettrer reasonable suspicion exists that a given
individual is the person being sought.

27. The State Police has adopted a protocol cagaditiR-55 (Motor Vehicle Stops)," dated December
14, 1999, which establishes criteria to be followgdstate troopers in selecting which vehiclestop s
for violation of state motor vehicle laws. This fwreol includes the nondiscrimination requiremesets s
forth in 26 and has been approved by the United Statesfar @ the protocol identifies practices i
procedures required by the Decree. The State ismaliément this protocol as soon as practicable. The
State shall monitor and evaluate the implementadfdhe motor vehicle stop criteria and shall revis
the criteria as may be necessary or appropria@d@sare compliance with {1 26 and 129. Prior to the
implementation of any revised criteria, the Stdallsobtain approval from the United States and the
Independent Monitor.

28. In order to help ensure that state troopersheseauthority to conduct consensual motor vehicl
searches in a nondiscriminatory manner, the Stalteé>shall continue to require: that state trosper
may request consent to search a motor vehiclewingre troopers can articulate a reasonable suspicio
that a search would reveal evidence of a crimé;ghery consent search of a vehicle be based on
written consent of thedriver or other person autteal to give consentwhich precedes the search; that
the scope of a consent search be limited to theesobthe consent that is given by the driver beot
person authorized to give consent; that the doverther person authorized to give consent hasghé
to be present during a consent search at a locatiesistent with the safety of both the state tev@mnc
the motor vehicle occupants, which right can ordyaived after the driver or other person authadrize
to give consent is advised of such right; thatdheer or other person authorized to give consdmi w
has granted written consent may orally withdravt doemsent at any time during the search without
giving a reason; and that state troopers immegiaeist stop a consent search of a vehicle if anehwh
consent is withdrawn (except that a search mayiruemif permitted on some non-consensual basis).

INCIDENT DOCUMENTATION AND REVIE
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Documentatio

29. Motor VehicleStop Data

a. The State has adoptedprotocols (captioned FB%O( Vehicle Stops) dated 12/14/99;22-(Activity
Reporting System), F-3 (Patrol Procedures), F-di&RBrocedures), F-19 (MVR equipment), F-31
(Consent Searches), and a Motor Vehicle Stop Sé2eprt dated 12/21/99; and a Property Report
(S.P. 131 (Rev. 1/91)) that require state troopgliging vehicles, both marked and unmarked, for
patrols on roadways to accurately record in writegports logs, radio communications, radio record
and/or video recordings, the following informaticoncerning allmotor vehicle stops:

1. name and identification number of trooper(s) whihated the stop;

2. name and identification number of trooper(s) @hbbvely participated in the stop;

3. date, time, and location of the stop;

4. time at which the stop commenced and at whiehdied;

5. license number/state of stopped vehicle;

5A. description of stopped vehicle;

6. the gender and race/ethnicity of the driver, dneddriver's date of birth if known;

7. the gender and race/ethnicity of any passengerwas requested to exit the vehicle, frisked,
searched, requested to consent to a vehicle searalrested;

8. whether the driver was issued a summons or nguand the category of violation (i.e., moving
violation or non-moving violation);

8A. specific violations cited or warned;

9. the reason for the stop (i.e., moving violattwmon-moving violation, other [probable
cause/BOLO));

10. whether the vehicle occupant(s) were requdstedlit the vehicle;

11. whether the vehicle occupant(s) were frisked;

12. whether consent to search the vehicle was stegl@and whether consent was granted;

12A. the basis for requesting consent to searchehele;

13. whether a drug-detection canine was deployddidnether an alert occurred,;

13A. a description of the circumstances that preaphbe deployment of a drug-detection canine;

14. whether a nc-consensual search of the vehicle was condu
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14A. the circumstances that prompted a non-consésearch of the vehicle;

15. whether any contraband or other property waedp

15A. a description of the type and quantity of aoptraband or other property seized;

16. whether the vehicle occupant(s) were arrested if so, the specific charges;

17. whether the vehicle occupant(s) were subjactei@adly, physical, mechanical or chemical force;

17A. a description of the circumstances that preaphe use of force; and a description of any iegur
to state troopers and vehicle occupants as a ma@sthié use of force;

18. the trooper's race and gender; and
19. the trooper's specific assignment at the tifritaedstop (on duty only) including squad.

b. The protocols listed in §29(a)include, inddip, the procedures set forth in {1 30, 31, 32, anarB
have been approved by the United States insofreggrotocols identify practices and procedures
required by this Decree. The State shall implentiegge protocols as soon as practicable.

c. The State shall prepare or revise such fornpartg, and logs as may be required to implemest thi
paragraph and 11 31, 32, and 33 (and any relatetsf@eports, and logs, including arrest repods) t
eliminate duplication and reduce paperwork.

d. As experience and the availability of new tedbgp may warrant, the State Police may revise the
protocols adopted pursuant to this paragraph (@ctuthe reporting procedures set forth in 1 30, 3
32, and 33) by adopting protocols establishinge reporting procedures and by amending (to the
extent necessary) the forms, reports, and logstaddp implement this paragraph and 1 31, 32, and
33.

e. Prior to implementation, ofany revised proto@sid forms, reports, and logs adopted pursuant to
subparagraph (d) of this paragraph, the State shtlin approval ofthe United States and the
Independent Monitor. The United States and thegaddent Monitor shall be deemed to have provided
such approval unless they advise the State of Bjgction to a revised protocol within 30 days of
receiving same. The approval requirement of thigaragraph extends to protocols, forms, reports, an
logs only insofar as they implement practices amdgdures required by this Decree.

30. Communication Center Calh's for Motor Vehicle Stop3.he primary purpose of the
communications center is to monitor officer safgtgite troopers utilizing vehicles, both marked and
unmarked, for patrols on roadways shall continugacument all motor vehicle stops, intdia, by
calling in or otherwise notifying the communicatsocenter of each motor vehicle stop. All motor
vehicle stop information enumerated in § 29(a) thatansmitted to the communications center biesta
troopers pursuant to protocols listed in §29(ad, amrevised pursuant to 129(d) and (e), shall be
recorded by the center by means of the center'spdtanAided Dispatch system or other appropriate
means.

a. The initial call shall be made at the beginrohthe stop before the trooper approaches the stbpp
vehicle, unless the circumstances make prior notisafe or impractical, in which event the state
trooper shall notify the communications center@msas practicable. The State Police shall contiol
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require that, in calling in or otherwise notifyitfte communications center of a motor vehicle sstgie
troopers shall provide the communications centén widescription of the stopped vehicle and its
occupants (including the number of occupants, thgarent race/ethnicity, and their apparent ggnder
Troopers also shall inform the communications aeot¢he reason for the stop, namely, moving
violation, non-moving violation, or other.

b. State troopers shall notify the communicatiogrster prior to conducting a consent search or
nonconsensual search of a motor vehicle, unlessittiemstances make prior notice unsafe or
impractical.

c. At the conclusion of the stop, before the tradpaves the scene, the trooper shall notify the
communications center that the stop has been abed/unotify the center whether any summons or
written warning was issued or custodial arrest masle, communicate any information that is required
to be provided by the protocols listed in paragra@a) that was not previously provided, and cdrrec
any information previously provided that was inaede. If circumstances make it unsafe or impracttica
to notify the communications center of this infotraa immediately at the conclusion of the stop, the
information shall be provided to the communicatioaater as soon as practicable.

d. The communications center shall inform the teyayf an incident number assigned to each motor
vehicle stop that involved a motor vehicle procediue., occupant requested to exit vehicle, occupan
frisked, request for consent search, search, doggldployed, seizure, arrest or use of force), and
troopers shall utilize that incident numberto craference other documents prepared regarding that
stop. Likewise, all motor vehicle stop informati@torded by the communication center about a
particularmotor vehicle stop shall be identifiedtbg unique incident number assigned to that motor
vehicle stop.

31.Consent Searches of Motor Vehicl€ke State Police shall continue to require tha¢mever a state
trooper wishes to conduct or conducts a consessaath of a motor vehicle in connection with a m
vehicle stop, the trooper must complete a "conseséarch” form and report. The "consent to search”
form shall contain information which must be presérto the driver or other person authorized t@giv
consent before a consent search may be commenigisdoim shall be prepared in Englishand Spa
The "consent to search” report shall contain aoll#i information which must be documented for State
Police records.

a. The State Police shall require that all "consesearch" forms include the following information
1. the date and location of the stop;
2. the name and identification number of the treopaking the request for consent to search;

3. the names and identification numbers of anytamfdil troopers who activelyarticipate in the
discussion with the driver or passenger(s) conogrttie request for consent to search;

4. a statement informing the driveror other peraotiorized to give consentof the right to refuse to
grant consent to search, and that if the driveatloer person authorized to give consent grantseruns
the driver or other person authorized to give cohateany time for any reason may withdraw conge
search;

5. a statement informing thedriver or other pemsotihorized to give consent of the right to be prese
during the search at a location consistent withstifety of both the state trooper and the motorclke
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occupant(s)which right may be knowingly waived;

6. check-off boxes to indicate whether consentidess granted, and if consent is granted, the dniver
other person authorized to give consent shall ckiezlappropriate box and sign and date the forh; an

7. if the driveror other person authorized to gieasent refuses consent, the trooper or the drivero
other person authorized to give consent shall $® o the form and the driver or other person
authorized to give consentshall not be requiresigo the form.

b. A state trooper who requests permission to ccr@gonsent search shall document in a written
report the following information regardless of whet the request for permission to conduct a search
was granted or denied:

1. the name of the driver or other person authdriaegive consent to whom the request for consent i
directed, and that person's gender, race/ethnamty, if known, date of birth;

2. the names and identification numbers of all peye whoactivelyparticipate in the search;

3. the circumstances which constituted the readersalspicion giving rise to the request for consent

4. if consent initially is granted and then is wiitawn, the fact that this occurred, and whethes#eecl
continued based on probable cause or other norensunal ground, or was terminated as a result of the
withdrawal of consent;

5. a description of the type and quantity of angtaband or other property seized; and,

6. whether the discussion concerning the requesidiosent to search and/or any ensuing conserth
were recorded using MVR equipment.

c. The trooper shall sign and date the form andepert after each is fully completed.

32.Non-consensual Searches of Motor Vehicles (ExcludirgcleeSearches Begun as a Consent
Searcl). A state trooper shall complete a report whenelgting anymotor vehicle stop, the trooper
conducts a non-consensual search of a motor velextduding vehicle searches begun as a consent
search). The report shall include the followingpimhation:

1. the date and location of the stop;
2. the names and identification numbers of allpgye who activelyparticipated in the incident;
3. the driver's name, gender, race/ethnicity, drkchown, date of birth;

4. a description of the circumstances which pravipebable cause to conduct the search, or otherwis
justified the searct

5. a description of the type and quantity of angtaband or other property seized; and
6. whether the incident was recorded using MVR gmeint.

33.Drug-Detection Canine A state trooper shall complete a report whenewaing a motor vehicl
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stop, a drug-detection canine is deployed. Therteghall include the following information:
1. the date and location of the stop;

2. the names and identification numbers of allpeye who participated in the incident;

3. the driver's name, gender, race/ethnicity, drkchown, date of birth;

4. a description of the circumstances that promfitecanine to be deployed;

5. whether an alert occurred;

6. a description of the type and quantity of angtaband or other property seized; and

7. whether the incident was recorded using MVR gmeint.

34.Use of Mobile Video/Audio (MVR) Equipment

a. The State Police shall continue to operateatitbpvehicles engaged in law enforcement actiwitia
the New Jersey Turnpike and the Atlantic City Eggreay with MVR equipment. The State shall
continue with its plans to install MVR equipmentaith vehicles both marked and unmarked, used
forpatrols on all other limited access highway®ew Jersey (including interstate highways and the
Garden State Parkway), and shall complete thigllatibn within 12 months.

b. The State shall continue to implement procedilrasprovide that all state troopers operating a
vehicle with MVR equipment may operate that vehaidy if they first are trained on the manner in
which the MVR equipment shall be tested, maintaimed used. The State shall ensure that all MVR
equipment is regularly inspected, maintained, @&paired.

c. Except when MVR equipment unforeseeably doedumattion, allmotor vehicle stops conducted by
State Police vehicles with MVR equipment shall @eorded by these vehicles, using both the videc
audio MVR functions. The recording shall begin atet than when a trooper first signals the velile
stop or arrives at the scene of an ongoing motbiciestop begun by another law enforcement trgoper
and the recording shall continue until the motdrigke stop is completed and the stopped vehicle
departs, or until the trooper's participation ia thotor vehicle stop ends (the recording shallidel
requests for consent to search a vehicle, deploigémrugeetection canines, and vehicle searche
a trooper operating a vehicle with MVR equipmertivatyparticipates in a motor vehicle stop and is
aware that the motor vehicle stop was not recousaty the MVR equipment, the trooper shall notify
the communications center of the reason the st@gnetrecorded, which the center shall record in a
computerized information system.

Supervisory Review of Individual Reports and Incide

35. The reporting trooper's supervisor shall reveaeh report prepared pursuant to {31-33 within 14
days of the precipitating incident and, as appedpriin conjunction with that review, may view any
associated MVR tape.

36. The State shall adopt a protocol requiring 8tate Police supervisors review MVR tapes of motor
vehicle stops on a random basis. The protocol gisédiblish the schedule for conducting random
reviews and shall specify whether and in what matimepersonnel conducting the review shall pre
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a written report on each randomized review of anRviepe. Prior to implementation, the protocol shall
be approved by the United States and the Indepéhdi@mtor.

37. After conducting a review pursuant to 135, ¥86& special MVR review schedule, the personnel
conducting the review shall refer for investigatimnthe Professional Standards Bureau ("PSB") any
incident where this review reasonably indicatesssible violation of the provisions of this Decesel
the protocols listed inZp concerning search or seizure procedures, namdisation requirements, at
MVR use requirements, or the provisions of the Beaoncerning civilian complaint procedures.
Subsequent investigation shall be conducted bygeitte PSB or the Office of the Attorney General
("OAG") as determined by the State.Appropriate penel shall evaluate all incidents reviewed to
determine the need to implement any interventionife involved trooper.

38. The State Police and the OAG shall conducbperireviews of referral decisions pursuant to § 37
to ensure appropriate referrals are being madee Btaice personnel shall be held accountableir t
referral decisions.
39. The State Police shall require supervisorsatifiop squads that exclusively, or almost exclusivel
engage in patrols on limited access highways talgoinsupervisory activities in the field on a roeti
basis.

SUPERVISORY MEASURES TO PROMOTE CIVIL RIGHTS INTBEGR

Management Awareness Progr

40. The State shall develop and implementcompwe sy stems for maintaining and retrieving
information necessary for the supervision and mament of the State Police to promote
professionalism and civil rights integrity, to idéy and modify potentially problematic behavionadtc
promote best practices (hereinafter, the "Managémeareness Program” or "MAP").

41. The MAP shall consist of the following inforraat:

a. all items of information in connection with albtor vehicle stops that are required to be recbinde
written report, form, or log, or reported to theraaunications center, pursuant to 29 and the potgoc
listed in §290f this Decree, except that duplicatermation need not be entered, and informatiotoas
whether the incident was recorded with MVR equiptmaed not be entered if all patrol cars are
equipped with MVR unless a patrol car was equippigd MVR equipment that was not functioning;

b. information on civilian compliments and othediria of positive performance; information on
misconduct investigations;reports on use of fossoaiated with motor vehicle stops; on-duty ane off
duty criminal arrests and criminal charges; ciuits involving alleged misconduct by state troopers
while on duty; civil suits in which a trooper ismad as a party involving off-duty conduct that géle
racial bias, physical violence or threats of viakenand

c. implementation of interventions; and trainingpimation including the name of the course, date
started, date completed and training location &mhemember receiving training.

42. All information in MAP on substantiated miscaomstlinvestigations, civilian compliments, and other
indicia of positive performance which can be atitdadl to a specific trooper shall be made available
that trooper on an annual basisupon written reqighing in this paragraph shall be construed as
grantingthat trooper access to confidential documether than those identified in this paragrapho:
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any information which cannot be attributed to tte®per requesting the information.

43. Regarding the motor vehicle stop informatioenitfied in 9 (a) (1, 2, 3,4, 5,6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11,
13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, and 19) and recorded inrdetice with the protocols identified in 129(ag th
MAP shall have the capability to search and regrieumerical counts and percentages for any
combination of the above-referenced information tandin reports for different time periods (e.g.,
monthly, quarterly, annually) and for individuabtpers, squads, and stations. Regarding the motor
vehicle stop information identified in 129(a)(5A4,8L2A, 13A, 14A, 15A, and 17A) and recorded in
accordance with the protocols identified in §29¢aill be sufficient that the MAP shall have the
capability to access (through cross-referencedrgdgpauments or other method) this descriptive
information entered on specific incidents and miattRegarding the information identified in {41(wa
C), to the extent technologically feasible, the M&Rll be developed to have the capability to $earc
and retrieve numerical counts and percentagesijocambination of the information and to run report
for different time periods and for individual traag, squads or stations. To the extent that the MAP
shall require textual or narrative descriptionsni$conduct allegations or other information ideatlfin
141(b and c), it will be sufficient that the MAPIpmhave the capability to retrieve this descriptive
information.

44. Where information about a single incident duded within the MAP from more than one
document the State shall use a common control nuorb@her means to link the information from
different sources so that the user can cross-referthe information and perform analyses.

45. The State shall ensure that information isuidetl within the MAP in an accurate and timely fasl
and is maintained in a secure manner.

46. Within one hundred and eighty (180) days foltayentry of this Decree, the State shall develop a
plan for designing and implementing the MAP inchgthe use of the MAP, a timetable for
implementation, and a specification of the infonimatcontained in State records pre-dating the
implementation of the MAP that can reasonably lserporated in the MAP. Prior to effectuating the
implementation plan, the plan shall be approvethiyUnited States and the Independent Monitor.
Within 180 days following the entry of this Decrdlee State shall begin conducting the supervisody a
management reviews required by 748-53.

Supervisory and Management Reviews

47. Consistent with the requirements of 1148-5@jrthe State shall develop a protocol specifying the
manner in which supervisory and management revegwsdividual state troopers, and State Police
units and sub-units (e,groops, stations, and squads), shall be conduatetithe frequency of such
reviews. Prior to implementation, the protocol sbalapproved by the United States and the
Independent Monitor.

48. At least quarterly, State Police supervisoedl slonduct reviews and analyses of data obtaired f
the MAP and other appropriate sources to ensutertlizidual troopers and State Police units and
subunits are performing their duties in accord it provisions of this Decree and associated
protocols.

49. To the extent reflected in 143, reports of Miela shall regularly be prepared regarding indi@idu

troopers, stations and squads, for use in revieveppropriate. The reportsshall include the follayvi
information:
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a. the number of motor vehicle stops, by race/ettynireason for the stop (i.e., moving violatioon
moving violation, other), road, squad, and troggiation; and the number of enforcement actions and
procedurestaken in connection with or during therse of a motor vehiclestop, by race/ethnicity,
reason for the stop (i.e., moving violation, noreving violation, other), road, squad and trooper
station;

b. data (including racial/ethnic data) on compkimiisconduct investigations (for each type of
investigation, as delineated in 173), disciplimeivention, and uses of force associated with moto
vehicle stops.

50. To the extent reflected in 143,analyses of Mi&Rx concerning motor vehicle stops shall include a
comparison of racial/ethnic percentages of motbicle stops (by reason for the stop (i.e., moving
violation, non moving violation, other)) and rade&hnic percentages of enforcement actions and
procedures taken in connection with or during theerse of such stops, with a benchmark racial/ethnic
percentage if available (see 1154-55); a compan$oacial/ethnic percentages for such stops vhiéh t
racial/ethnic percentages for enforcement actiakert in connection with or the during the course of
such stops; a comparison of racial/ethnic percestéyy consent searches of vehicles, and requasts f
consent to search vehicles, with "find" rates efathnicity for motor vehicle consent searches; a
comparison of racial/ethnic percentages for norsenaual searches of motor vehicles with "find"gate
by race/ethnicity for motor vehicle non-consensgarches; evaluations of trends and differences ove
time; and evaluations of trends and differencewéen troopers, units, and subunits.

51. To the extent reflected in 143,analyses ofrallaéa generated by the MAP shall include evaluaatio
of trends and differences over time and evaluatadrieends and differences between troopers, units,
and subunits.

52. Each supervisor shall, consistent with hisearduthority, implement any appropriate changes or
remedial measures regarding traffic enforcemerteériai, training, and enforcement practices for
particular units or subunits or implement any appiaie intervention for particular troopers; conduc
any necessary additional assessment or investigagarding particular units or subunits or pattcu
troopers; and/or make any appropriate recommengatio

53. A supervisory review shall be conducted regaydiny state trooper who within a period of two
years, is the subject of three misconduct investiga of any kind initiated pursuant to { 73. Where
appropriate, the review may result in interventi@mng taken. In the event the supervisory review
results in intervention, the supervisor shall doeatthe nature, frequency, and duration of the
intervention.

54. To assist in evaluating data reported fromMIAd® concerning State Police law enforcement on the
New Jersey Turnpike, the State shall develop (fwppses of implementing this Decree) a protoco
conducting a survey of a sample of persons ancthe=hiraveling on the New Jersey Turnpike to
determine the raciédthnic percentage of drivers on the Turnpike. Asrapriate, the survey may
identify different benchmark figures for differgmbrtions of the Turnpike. Prior to implementatitime
protocol shall be approved by the Independent Momihd the United States. The protocol shall be
developed and implemented using a consultant yoggllected by the parties. The survey shall be
completed within one hundred fifty (150) days of #ntry of this Decree. Both the United States and
the State agree that the utility and fairness eMAP described in this Consent Decree will dep@end
some degree on the development of accurate amthieelbenchmarks that account for all appropriate
variables and factor
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55. For purposes of implementing this Decree, tageSnay in its discretion conduct a survey of a
sample of persons and vehicles traveling on angrdimited access highway in New Jersey to
determine the raciédthnic percentage of drivers on that road. In degisvhether to conduct such a
survey, the State shall give due consideratiomyoracommendations made by the United States and
the Independent Monitor. The survey shall be cotetlipursuant to a protocol developed by the State
and approved by the Independent Monitor and théedritates. The protocol shall be developed and
implemented using a consultant jointly selectedhgyparties.

56. The parties agree that for purposes of devedpappropriate benchmar&cial/ethnic percentages
will be sufficient for the surveys described bySffland 55 to determine the racial/ethnic percestafie
persons and vehicles traveling on the subject ragdWhe provisions of {{ 54 and 55 shall not apply
any traffic survey conducted by the State for pagsoof advocating a position in any criminal case o
any civil litigation other than inthe instant case.

MISCONDUCT INVESTIGATIONS, ANALYSES, AND RESOLUSION

Public Information and Outreax

57. The State Police shall require all state tre®p®provide their name and identification numtoer
any civilian who requests it.

58. The State Police shall develop and implememffactive program to inform civilians that they yna
make complaints or provide other feedback regarthegperformance of any state trooper. This
program shall, at a minimum, include the developneémformational materials (fact sheets and
informational posters) describing the complaintgessand the development and distribution of civilian
complaint forms. The State Police shall make suaterals available in Englishand Spanish

59. The State shall make complaint forms and in&diomal materials available at State Police
headquarters, all State Police stations, and stigr tocations around New Jersey as it may determin
from time to time. The State shall publicize that&tPolice mailing address, internet address,@hd t
free telephone number at state-operated rest kioated on limited access highways. The State @olic
also shall provide information on the internet altbe methods by which civilians may file a compt:
The State Police further shall require all stadbepers to carry fact sheets and complaint formbeir
vehicles at all times while on duty. The State ¢®Bhall require all troopers to inform civilianov
object to a trooper's conduct that civilians havight to make a complaint. The State Police shall
prohibit state troopers from discouraging any @wilfrom making a complaint.

60. The State Police shall develop a program ofraomty outreach to inform the public about State
Police functions and procedures, including motdricle stops, searches and seizures, and the methods
for reporting civilian complaints or complimentgezding officers. This outreach program is not
intended, and should not be construed, to regh@etate Police to disclose operational technitmes

the public.

Receipt of Misconduct Allegatic

61. Civilians may initiate a complaint or otherwm®vide feedback regarding State Police performa
either in person, by mail, by telephone (or TDD)by facsimile transmission. The State Police shall
accept and investigate anonymous complaints angbleamis filed by civilians other than the alleged
victim of misconduct. The State shall not requiratta complaint be submitted in writing to initiate
misconduct investigatiot
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62. The State Police shall institute a 24-hourfrele telephone hotline for civilians to call to keaa
complaint or compliment or otherwise provide feerbeegarding State Police performance. The hc
shall be operated by the Professional StandardsaBihereinafter "PSB"). The State Police shall
immediately connect or refer all civilians to thistline who telephone a State Police station todil
complaint. The State Police shall publicize thdihettelephone number on informational materials,
complaint forms, and "consent to search" forms. $tagde Police shall tape record all conversations o
this hotline and shall notify all persons callitng thotline of the tape recording. The State Palical
develop a procedure to assure that callers arg lbeiated with appropriate courtesy and respeat, th
complainants are not being discouraged from mag&argplaints, and that all necessary information
about each complaint is being obtained. This proeedhall include regular reviews of the tape
recordings.

63. The PSB shall be responsible for receivingnadiconduct complaints. All complaints made at
locations other than the PSB shall be forwardetiéd®SB within a reasonably prompt period as
specified by the State Police. The State Policé aksign and record a case number for each contplai
The OAG shall have access to all misconduct comidaeceived by PSB.

64. The State Police shall relocate PSB officdsuitlings separate from any building occupied by
other State Police personnel. The PSB shall paelite locations of its offices.

65. The State Police shall refer to the OAG and&Ror investigation of state trooper performanite a
incidents in which a civilian is charged by a stat®per with obstruction of official business, istisig
arrest, assault on a state trooper, or disorderkgact, where the prosecutor's office or a judge
dismisses the charge before or during trial andlitmissal is not part of the plea agreement.

66. The State shall notify the OAG whenever a pefses a civil claim against the State alleging
misconduct by a state trooper or other employdbetate Police. The OAG shall notify the PSB of
such civil claims.

67. The State shall make reasonable efforts toeameht a method by which it will be notified of a
finding in criminal proceeding of a constitutionablation or misconduct by a state trooper.

68. The State Police shall require all state tro®peomptly to notify the State Police of the feliog:
the trooper is arrested or criminally charged foy aonduct; the trooper is named as a party incanly
suit involving his or her conduct while on duty @herwise while acting in an official capacity);tbe
trooper is named as a party in any civil suit rdgay off-duty conduct (while not acting in an oféit
capacity) that alleges racial bias, physical viokgrorthreats of physical violence by the troof¢ate
troopers shall report this information either dileto the PSB or to a supervisor who shall repioet
information to the PSB. The PSB shall notify the@Af PSB's receipt of this information.

69. The State Police shall require state troomersyort, based on personal knowledge, any cormuct
other troopers, involving civilians, that reasoryadgbpears to constitute: (a) prohibited discrimorat
(b) an unreasonable use of force or a threat a&fdic) an intentional constitutional violation) @h
intentional failure to follow any of the documenat requirements of this Decree, or (e)an intergion
provision of false information in a misconduct istigation or in any report, log, or transmittal of
information to the communications center. Stategers shall report such misconduct by fellow
troopers either directly to the PSB or to a sugemvivho shall report the allegation to the PSB. PB&
shall notify the OAG of PSB's receipt of this infation.

The Professional Standards Buri
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The Investigations Component

70. The State Police shall provide for a Professi@tandards Bureau, the purpose of which shath be
protect the professional integrity of the DivisiohState Police and to fully, fairly and expeditsbu
investigate and resolve complaints and other midganinvestigations. The State shall provide thB PS
sufficient staff, funds, and resources to perfonefunctions required by this Decree. The Staté sha
encourage highly qualified candidates to become R@&stigators.

71. The Superintendent of theState Policeshalbkskaformal eligibility criteria for the head dfie

PSB and for staff who supervise or conduct inteimagstigations. These criteria shall apply to the
incumbent PSB head and investigative staff, andaaltiidates for these positions, and also shalkbe
to monitor the performance of persons serving @s¢hpositions. The criteria shall address, iabier

prior investigative experience and training, analgnd writing skills, interpersonal and communicat
skills, cultural and community sensitivity, commént to police integrity, and previous performanse a
a law enforcement officer.

72. The State shall ensure that the PSB head afidhsit supervise or conduct internal investigagio
receive adequate training to enable them to carryheir duties. The training shall continue toluale
the following: misconduct investigation techniquiegerviewing skills; observation skills; report
writing; criminal law and procedure; court procegijrrules of evidence; and disciplinary and
administrative procedures.

Misconduct Investigatiol

73. A misconduct investigation shall be initiatagdguant to any of the following:
a. the making of a complaint (as defined in {16);
b. a referral pursuant to 37 or Y65;

c. the filing of a civil suit by a civilian allegghany misconduct by a state trooper while on daty (
acting in an official capacity);

d. the filing of a civil suit against a state treopor off-duty conduct (while not acting in an icfél
capacity) that alleges racial bias, physical vioksrorthreat of physical violence; and

e. a criminal arrest of or filing of a criminal clga against a state trooper.

74. All misconduct investigations shall be condddig the PSB or the OAG except as delegated to the
chain-of-command supervisors. Assignment of misachahvestigations will be made as follows:

a. The PSB or the OAG shall conduct misconductgtgations in the following circumstances:

i. all complaints alleging a discriminatory motarhicle stop; all complaints alleging an improper
enforcement action or procedurein connection witduwing the course of a motor vehicle stop; ahd al
complaints alleging excessive force in connectiaih awny motor vehicle stop;

ii. all complaints relating to any motor vehicl®gtwhere a State Police supervisor either waseat th

incident scene when the alleged misconduct occunr@ehs involved in planning the State Police ax
whose implementation led to the compla
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iii. any misconduct investigation undertaken purdua any event identified in subparagraphs (b)
through (e) of §73; and

iv. any other category of misconduct complaintsiay individual misconduct complaint that the OAG
and/or State Police determines should be investigay PSB or OAG.

The State Police may continue to assign misconduestigations not undertaken by the OAG or PSB
to the chain-of-command supervisors.

b. The PSB and the OAGshall review all miscondochglaints as they are received to determine
whether they meet the criteria (set forth in subgeaph (a) above) for being investigated bythe PSB,
the OAG or being delegated to a chain-of-commampe@iisor. Nothing in this decree is intended to
affect the allocation of misconduct investigatidme$ween the PSB and the OAG.

75. The State shall prohibit any state trooper Wa® a conflict of interest related to a pending
misconduct investigation from participating in amgty in the conduct or review of that investigation.

76. All written or recorded interviews shall be mtained as part of the investigative file. The &tttal
not conduct group interviews and shall not acceptitien statement from any state trooper in liean
interview.

77. The State shall arrange a convenient time &k pincluding by telephone (or TDD), to interview
civilians for misconduct investigations. The StBtdice shall reasonably accommodate civilians'
circumstances to facilitate the progress of anstigation. This may include holding an interviewaat
location other than a State office or at a timeepthan regular business hours.

78. In conducting misconduct investigations, theté&shall assess the propriety of all state trooper
conduct during the incident in which the allegedeonduct occurred. If during the course of an
investigation the investigator has reason to beli&nat misconduct occurred other than that alleged,
that potential misconduct is one of the types idieqdtin 169, the investigator also shall investegthe
additional potential misconduct to its logical cluston.

79. Where two or more individual incidents thatuikeg a misconduct investigation are related, tfaeSt
may investigate the incidents in a single miscohduestigation.

80. The State shall update its manual for condgatirsconduct investigations to assure that it is
consistent with the recommendations containedarihal Report and the requirements of this Decree.

Evaluating and Resolving Misconduct Allegati

81. The State shall make findings based on a "mag@nce of the evidence" standard.

82. If the incident that is the subject of the roisduct investigation was recorded on an MVR talpa, t
tape shall be reviewed as part of the miscondwetsitigation.

83. In each misconduct investigation, the Statd sbasider circumstantial evidence, as appropyiate
and make credibility determinations, if feasibléefe shall be no automatic preference for a state
trooper's statement over a civilian's statememil&ily, there shall be no automatic judgment thate
is insufficient information to make a credibilitgrmination where the only or principal informatio
about an incident is the conflicting statementthefinvolved trooper and civilial
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84. The State shall continue to resolve each &lga a misconduct investigation by making one of
the following dispositions:

a. "Substantiated," where a preponderance of titeeee shows that a state trooper violated State
Police rules, regulations, protocols, standard ajpey procedures, directives or training;

b. "Unfounded,"” where a preponderance of the exdeshows that the alleged misconduct did not
occur;

c. "Exonerated," where a preponderance of the aeelshows that the alleged conduct did occur but
did not violate State Police rules, regulationgraing procedures, directives or training; and

d. "Insufficient evidence" (formerly "unsubstanéidt), where there is insufficient evidence to decid
whether the alleged misconduct occurred.

85. The State shall not close any misconduct iny&sbn without rendering one of the dispositions
identified above. Withdrawal of a complaint or uadability of the complainant or the victim of the
alleged misconduct to make a statement shall nathesis for closing an investigation without ferth
attempt at investigation. The State shall investigach matters to the extent reasonably possible t
determine whether or not the allegations can beoborated.

86. At the conclusion of each misconduct investoggithe individual responsible for the investigati
shall issue a report on the investigation, whichlldbe made a part of the investigation file. Tapart
shall include a description of the alleged miscan@und any other misconduct issues identified durin
the course of the investigation; a summary andyarsabf all relevant evidence gathered during the
investigation; and findings and analysis supportimgfindings.

87. The State Police shall continue to attempbtoete misconduct investigations within forty-five
(45) days after assignment to an investigator.

Disciplinary Procedure

88. The State Police shall discipline any statedes who is the subject of a substantiated miscondu
adjudication or disposition regarding: (a) prokebitdiscrimination; (b) an unreasonable use of forcz
threat of force; (c) an intentional constitutionadlation; (d) an intentional failure to follow arof the
documentation requirements of this Decree, (ephtamtional provision of false information in a
misconduct investigation or in any report, logtransmittal of information to the communications
center; or (f) a failure to comply with the requirent of Y69 to report misconduct by another trooper

89. The State Police shall initiate disciplinarpgeedings against any state trooper who is fouiitygu
or who enters a plea in a criminal case regardmguty conduct; any state trooper found civillyblia
for misconduct of the type identified in Y88 contetton duty or whose misconduct of the type
identified in 188 is the basis for the State bdowgnd civilly liable; and any state trooper whdasind
by a judge in a criminal case to have committethtantional constitutional violation. The State ieel
shall discipline any state trooper who is determiittchave committed the misconduct set forth is thi
paragraph.

90. In deciding the appropriate discipline or imgartion for each state trooper who is the subjéet o

"substantiated" adjudication or disposition in @ooinduct investigation and each trooper who ito b
disciplined pursuant t189, the State shall consider the nature and sciofee anisconduct and tr
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information in the MAP. In all instances where 8tate substantiates a misconduct allegation reggardi
matters identified in 88 or disciplines a troopersuant to §9, it shall also require that intervention
instituted (except where the discipline is termimat Where a misconduct allegation is not
substantiated, the State shall consider the infboman the investigation file and in the MAP to
determine whether intervention should be instituted

Tracking, Records, and Reporting

91. The PSB shall track all open misconduct ingasibns to ensure that investigations are compliel
a timely fashion. Within one hundred twenty (128ysl following entry of this Decree, the State shall
develop a plan for designing and implementing apaterized tracking system (including a timetable
for implementation).

92. After a misconduct complaint is finally resadvey the State Police, the State Police shall mftre
complainant of the resolution in writing, includitige investigation's significant dates, general
allegations, anddisposition, including whethergine wasimposed.

TRAINING

Training Oversight and Coordination

93. The New Jersey State Police shall continueuversee and ensure the quality of all trainingtafes
troopers; continue to develop and implement theeSRalice Academy curriculum for training State
Police recruits, and provide training for acadenstructors; select and train state trooper coaches
coordination with and assistance from State Pdigeervisors; approve and supervise all gastdemy
training for state troopers, and develop and imgleinall post-Academy training conducted by theestat
Police; provide training for State Police instrustavho provide post-Academy training; and establish
procedures for evaluating all training (which shiadlude an evaluation of instructional conteng th
quality of instruction, and the implementation lbgte troopers of the practices and procedures being
taught).

94. The Independent Monitor shall review and euv&l@adl training currently provided or sponsored by
the State Police regarding motor vehicle stopsearfidrcement actions and procedures in connection
with or during the course of motor vehicle stopsisTreview shall consist of whether the training
provided or sponsored by the State Police effelgtivestructs troopers to comply with the requirertsen
of 11126, 28, 29(a), 30, 31, 32, and 33.

95. Within nine months of the entry of this Decréee, Independent Monitor shall submit a draft répor
to the parties setting forth the Monitor's findireged recommendations regarding the training issues
identified in 94. During the 30-day period followgi submission of the draft report, the partiestaed
Monitor shall consult regarding the content of dnaft report, and the parties may submit written
comments on the draft report to the Monitor (witipies provided to each other). Within thirty (30)
days after the consultation and comment periocchded, the Independent Monitor shall submit a final
report to the Court, and the parties, with apprdprexplanations and justifications for any changes
made to the draft report.

96. If the State concurs with the Monitor's fingport on training, then within ninety (90) dayseaft
submission of this report the State shall develpfaa for implementing the report's recommendations
and submit the plan to the United States for apgdrd¥/the State does not concur in whole or irt par
with the Monitor's final report on training, themithin thirty (30) days after submission of thipoet,
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the State shall submit its objections to the Cadnich shall review the Monitor's recommendations
under an abuse of discretion standard.

Academy Training, Pc-Academy Training, and Trooper Coach Field Training

97. The State shall continue to encourage supeoopers to apply for Academy, post-Academy, and
trooper coach training positions.

98. The State shall establish formal eligibilitydeselection criteria for all Academy, postademy, an
trooper coach training positions. These criterilsdpply to all incumbent troopers in these tnagni
positions and to all candidates for these traipiogitions, and also shall be used to monitor the
performance of persons serving in these positibhe.criteria shall address, intalia, knowledge of
State Police policies and procedures, interpersamdicommunication skills, cultural and community
sensitivity, teaching aptitude, performance asnadaforcement trooper, experience as a trainet; pos
Academy training received, specialized knowledge, @mmitment to police integrity.

99. The State Police shall ensure that all trooperging as an Academy or post-Academy instructor,
as a trooper coach, receive adequate trainingablemhem to carry out their duties, includingrinag

in adult learning skills, leadership, teaching, amdluation. All training instructors and troopeaches
shall be required to maintain, and demonstrate i@galar basis, a high level of competence. Th&eSta
shall document all training instructors' and traop@aches' proficiency and provide additional fragn

to maintain proficiency.

100. The State Police shall continue to trainedkuits and troopers in cultural diversity, whit¢tal
include training on interactions with persons frdiffierent racial, ethnic, and religious groups,quers

of the opposite sex, persons having a differentiglearientation, and persons with disabilities;
communication skills; and integrity and ethicslintng the duties of truthfulness and reporting
misconduct by fellow troopers, the importance afiding misconduct, professionalism, and the duty to
follow civilian complaint procedures and to coogerim misconduct investigations. This training $hal
be reinforced through mandatory annual in-serviaging covering these topics.

101. The State Police shall continue to provideuieand annual in-service training on Fourth
Amendment requirements. In addition, the Statel ginalide training on the non-discrimination
requirements of this Decree as part of all Acadamy in-service patrol-related and drug-interdiction
related training, including training on conductimgtor vehicle stops and searches and seizures. An
attorney designated by the Attorney General's ©ficall participate in the development and
implementation of this training.

102. Before the next recruit class graduates filoerState Police Academy, the State Police shafitado
a protocol regarding its trooper coach program. dite¢ocol shall address the criteria and method for
selecting trooper coaches, the training providettidoper coaches to perform their duties, the legt
time that probationary troopers spend in the progtae assignment of probationary troopers to teoop
coaches, the substance of the training providedmper coaches, and the evaluation of probationary
trooper performance by trooper coaches. Prior flementation, the protocol shall be approved by the
Independent Monitor and the United States.

103. The State Police shall as soon as practigablade copies and explain the terms of this Detwee
all state troopers and employees in order to erthatehey understand the requirements of this &secr
and the necessity for strict compliance. After $tate has adopted new policies and procedures in
compliance with this Decree, the State shall prewn-service training to every state trooper regart
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the new policies and procedures and the relevawigions of this Decree. The State shall incorporat
training on these policies and procedures intouietnaining at the State Police Academy.

104. The State shall establish systems for StdtedPunits, sub-units, and supervisors to provide
information and refer particular incidents to thaifing Bureau to assist the Training Bureau in
evaluating the effectiveness of training and te@dethe need for new or further training.

105. The State Police shall provide all supervisdats mandatory supervisory and leadership training
which (in addition to the subjects addressed ir0QfHnd 101) shall address effective supervisory
techniques to promote police integrity and preveisiconduct. The State Police shall provide theahit
training required by this paragraph within one yeam entry of the Decree and thereafter shall glev
supervisory training on an annual basis.

106. The State shall design and implement post-&ogdraining programs for all state troopers who
are advancing in rankhe State shall require troopers to successfullyptete this training, to the
extent practicable, before the start of the prochtt@oper's service in his or her new rank, anaain
event later than within six monthsof the promotedper's service in his or her new rank.

107. The State shall design and implement post-&wgdraining programs for all state troopers who
are newly assigned to a State Police troop, statioassignment where specialized training is resrgs
in order to perform the assigned duties.

Documentation of Trainir

108. The State Police shall continue to maintatomgs documenting all training of state troopers. A
part of the MAP, the State Police will track alitring information, including name of the coursated
started, date completed, and training locatiorebirth member receiving training. The MAP will
maintain current and historical training informatio

109. The State Police shall maintain in a cengpobsitory copies of all Academy, post-Academy and
trooper coach training materials, curricula, arssém plans.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE OFFICE OF THE

NEW JERSEY ATTORNEY GENERAL

110. The Attorney General of New Jersey shall eraatOffice of State Police Affairs ("office"). The
office shall have the responsibility to ensure iempéntation of the terms of this Consent Decree and
provide coordination with the Independent Monitoddhe United States concerning the State Police
and matters related to the implementation of thes€ot Decree. An Assistant Attorney General shall
head the office. The office's responsibilities Elmadlude auditing the manner in which the State
receives, investigates, and adjudicates miscoralegations; auditing the State Police's use of MAP
data; and auditing state trooper performance ofrtbr vehicle stop requirements discussed in the
Consent Decree. The office also shall be respansilproviding technical assistance and training
regarding these matters. The office shall have adiditional responsibilities as may be assignethby
State Attorney General.

111. The office shall implement an auditing systemcontacting a sample of persons who were the

subject of motor vehicle stops and enforcemenbastand proceduresconnected to a motor vehicle
stop, to evaluate whether state troopers condutddlocumented the incidents in the mai
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prescribed by State Police rules, regulations,gatames, and directives, and the requirements sf thi
Decree.

112. The office's audits of the receipt, invesimatand adjudication of misconduct allegationdisha
include audits of the tapes of the complaint/comn@ifree telephone hotline established by 162; t
use of testers to evaluate whether complaint inpai&eedures are being followed; audits of audi@tap
and videotape interviews produced during the coafseisconduct investigations; and interviews of a
sample of persons who file misconduct complairftey aheir complaints are finally adjudicated.

113. The office shall have full and unrestrictedess to all State Police staff, facilities, anduents
(including databases) that the office deems nepgssa&arry out its functions.

PUBLIC INFORMATION

114. The State Police shall prepare semiannual@réports that includeaggregate statisticson State
Police traffic enforcement activities and proceduseoken down by State Police station and the
race/ethnicity of the civilians involved. These eggate statistics shall include the number of motor
vehicle stops (byreason for motor vehicle stopjp@ment actions (including summonses, warnings,
and arrests) and procedures (including requestsoftsent to search, consent searches, non-consensua
searches, and uses of force) taken in connectittnoxviduring the course of such stops. The infoiom
regarding misconduct investigations shall inclunlea statewide basis, the number of external,nater
and total complaints received and sustained bygoayeof violation.The information contained in the
reports shall be consistent with the status ofeSeatice recordkeeping systems, including the statu
the MAP computer system®ther than expressly provided herein, this paggra not intended, and
should not be interpreted, to confer any additioitgdts to information collected pursuant to this
Decree.

OVERSIGHT, REPORTING AND RECORD KEEPING, AND IMPEEVATION

Independent Monit

115. Within ninety (90) days after the entry ofstbiecree, the State and the United States shaliiteg
select an Independent Monitor who shall monitor pbrt on the State's implementation of this
Decree. The Monitor shall be acceptable to bothgsarf the parties are unable to agree on an
Independent Monitor, each party shall submit twmes of persons who have experience as a law
enforcement officer, as a law enforcement practsgert or monitor, or as a federal, state, or goun
prosecutor or judge along with resumes or currieitkee and cost proposals to the Court, and thetCou
shall appoint the Monitor from among the namesuzlifjed persons submitted. The State shall bdar al
costs of the Monitor, subject to approval by thei€o

116. The Monitor shall be an agent of the Court mag testify in this case regarding any matter
relating to the implementation, enforcement, osdlistion of this Decree. The Monitor shall not ifgst
in any other litigation or issue statements or miak@ings with regard to any act or omission of the
defendants, or their agents or representativegptas required or expressly authorized by thegerim
this Decree or by the Court. The Monitor shall betretained by any current or future litigant or
claimant in a claim or suit against the State ®tribopers.

117. The Monitor shall offer the State technicalistance regarding compliance with this Decree.

118. The State shall provide the Monitor with fatid unrestricted access to all State staff, faaslitanc
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non-rivilegeddocuments (including databases) necessargrry out the duties assigned to the Mor
by this Decree. In the event of an objection, tbar€shall make the final determination regarding
access. In any instance in which the State objed@scess, it must establish that the access saight
relevant to monitoring the implementation of then€ent Decree, or that the information requested is
privilegedand the interest underlying the privileg@not be adequately addressed through the en&t
protective order. In any instance in which the &teserts that a document is privileged, it mustige
the United States and the Monitor a log descriltigdocument and the privilege asserted.
Notwithstanding any claim of privilege, the docurtgeto which the Monitor shall be provided acc
include: (1) all State Police documents (or positimereof) concerning compliance with the provision
of this Decree, other than a request for legal@\vand (2) all documents (or portions thereofppred
by the Office of the Attorney General which contéantual records, factual compilations, or factual
analysis concerning compliance with the provisiohthis Decree. Other than as expressly provided
herein, with respect to the Independent Monitas, plaragraph is not intended, and should not be
interpreted to reflect a waiver of any privilegegluding those recognized at common law or crelayed
State statute, rule or regulation, which the Stadg assert against any person or entity othertthean
Independent Monitor.

119. The Monitor, intealia, shall review and evaluate the quality and timegof appropriate samples
of misconduct investigations, disciplinary actioasd interventions ordered as a result of a miseoind
investigation; supervisory steps taken pursuafiBig data contained in the MAP and MAP reports;
appropriate samples of "consent to search" formdsr@ports, "non-consensual search” reports, drug-
detection canine reports, motor vehicle stop repand logs, and MVR tapes prepared in connection
with a motor vehicle stop; and supervisory reviefvsicidents pursuant to 1148-53, and supervisory
steps taken following these reviews.

120. Subject to the limitations set forth in thegggraph, the State Police shall reopen for further
investigation any misconduct investigation the Mondetermines to be incomplete. The Monitor shall
provide written instructions for completing the @stigation. The Monitor shall exercise this auttyori

so that any directive to reopen an investigatiogiven within a reasonable period following the
investigation's conclusion. The Monitor may notreige this authority concerning any misconduct
investigation which has been adjudicated or othewlisposed, and the disposition has been offciall
communicated to the trooper who is the subjechefinvestigation.

121. During the first year after this Consent Dedgeentered, the Monitor shall issue quarterhorep
detailing the State's compliance with and impleragom of this Consent Decree. Thereatfter, the
Monitor shall issue such reports at least semialhnaamore frequently as the Monitor determines is
appropriate.

Reports and Recor

122. Between ninety (90) and one hundred twent@)#l2ys following entry of this Consent Decree
and every six months thereafter until this Congsree is terminated, the State shall file with the
Court and the Monitor, with a copy to the Unitedt8s, a status report delineating all steps takeng
the reporting period to comply with each provisadrihis Consent Decree.

123. During the term of this Consent Decree,th&eSthall maintain all records documenting its
compliance with the terms of this Consent Decrakaihdocuments required by or developed unde
Consent Decree. The State shall maintain all midganinvestigation files for at least ten yearsriro

the date of the incident. The State Police shalhtam a troopers' training records and all perfigna
identifiable information about a trooper includedihe MAP, during the trooper's employment with the
State Police. Information necessary for aggredatesgcal analysis shall be maintained indefiryitel
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the MAP for statistical purposes.MVR tapes shalii@ntained for 90 days after the incidents rectrde
on a tape, except as follows: any MVR tape thatngx an incident that is the subject of an pending
misconduct investigation or a civil or criminal peeding shall be maintained at least until the
misconduct investigation or the civil or criminabgeeding is finally resolved. Any MVR tape that
records an incident that is the subject of a sultistied misconduct investigation, or an incideat th
gave rise to any finding of criminal or civil lidly, shall be maintained during the employmenthef
troopers whose conduct is recorded on the tape.

124. During all times while the Court maintainggdiction over this action, the United States shaile
access to any Statestaff, facilities and non-mgeld documents (including databases)the United<Stat
deems necessary to evaluate compliance with thisé€ Decree and, within a reasonable time
following a request made to the State attorneyl,slndess an objection is raised by the State, be
granted such access and receive copies of documethidatabases requested by the United States. In
the event of an objection, the Court shall makiea determination regarding access. In any inganc
which the State objects to access, it must estathiet the access sought is not relevant to mangor
the implementation of the Consent Decree, or taifriformation requested is privilegedand the et
underlying the privilege cannot be adequately askré through the entry of a protective order. \ an
instance in which the State asserts that a docuim@nitvileged, it must provide the United Stated a
the Monitor a log describing the document and ttdlpge asserted. Notwithstanding any claim of
privilege, the documents to which the United Statesl be provided access include: (1) all State®o
documents (or portions thereof) concerning compkanith the provisions of this Decree, other than a
request for legal advice; and (2) all documentgotions thereof) prepared by the Office of the
Attorney General which contain factual recordstdatcompilations, or factual analysis concerning
compliance with the provisions of this Decree. @than as expressly provided herein with respect to
the United States, this paragraph is not intended,should not be interpreted to reflect a waivemy
privilege, including those recognized at common tawereated by State statute, rule or regulation,
which the State may assert against any persontity ether than the United States.

125. Except to the extent expressly stated in it btherwise publicly disclosed, all documents
(including databases), records, data, logs, amatdetgs which are collected or maintained purst@ant
this Decree and which are made accessible to titedJtates and the Independent Monitor, shall be
deemed confidential and shall not be disclosedhyoprson or entity, other than the Court, the &thit
States, and the Independent Monitor, absent writtéice to the State and either written conserthby
State or a Court order authorizing disclosure pamsto otherwise applicable law.

126. This Consent Decree, together with the prdsosderenced in 29(a) shall constitute the entire
integrated agreement of the parties. No prior draftprior or contemporaneous communications, @
written, shall be relevant or admissible for pugmef determining the meaning of any provisions
herein in any litigation or any other proceeding.

127. Nothing in this Consent Decree shall congtitutbe construed as an acknowledgment, agreement,
admission, statement, or evidence of liabilitylo# State under 42 U.S.C. 814141 or 42 U.S.C. §83789d
(c), or any other law; nor shall this Consent Dearenstitute or be construed as an acknowledgment,
agreement, admission, statement, or evidence oViatation of applicable law or of the existencesof
pattern or practice of conduct by state troopeas dieprives persons of rights, privileges, and
immunities secured or protected by the Constitugind laws of the United States. Nothing in this
Consent Decree shall constitute or be construesh @asknowledgment, agreement, admission,
statement, or evidence that the management systéforaystems employed by the State Police pri
the execution of this Consent Decree were in anymaainadequate, unconstitutional, or constituted
deliberate indifference of the State within anyteahand, in particular, within the context of 423.C.
81983 or 42 U.S.C814141.
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128. This Consent Decree is binding upon the Urfiitades and the defendants by and through their
officials, agents, employees, and successors.dtmsent Decree is enforceable only by the parties.
Nothing in this Consent Decree shall be constroathpair the right of any person or organizatiol
seek relief against the State or the State Pabicéd conduct or the conduct of state trooperghidg in
this Consent Decree is intended to alter the dbliedargaining agreements between the State &nd th
various unions which represent State Police perdonn

129. The State, by and through its officials, ageemployees, and successors, is enjoined from and
shall not engage in a pattern or practice of condduc¢he State Police that deprives persons otsgjgh
privileges, or immunities secured or protectedh®y €onstitution or laws of the United States. This
paragraph does not apply to the State's employpwiies, practices, or procedures.

Implementatio

130. This Consent Decree shall become effectiventry by the Court. Except where otherwise
specifically indicated, the State Police shall iexpent all provisions of this Decree as soon as
practicable and no later than 180 days after esfttitis Consent Decree.

131. The Court shall retain jurisdiction of thigian for all purposes during the term of this Cartse
Decree.

a. At any time after both five years have elapsedesentry of this Consent Decree autbstantial
compliance with the terms of this Decree has beaimtained for no less than two years (which may be
calculated as two periods of four successive grsjrtthe Court may, upon motion by the State,
terminate this Consent Decree. Any motion to teat@rmust detail all aspects of the State's comgian
with each provision of this Consent Decree, sugubbly affidavits and supporting documentation. The
United States shall have ninety (90) days fromipta# the State's motion to file any objectionsthe
event the United States files objections to théeStanotion, the Consent Decree shall remain eceff

at least until entry of a court order disposinghe&f motion and thereafter as dictated by the Gourt'
order. In the event the United States objectsrtaitetion of the Consent Decree, the Court shdd ho
hearing, at which both parties may present eviddmef®re ruling on the State's motion to terminate.
the hearing, the burden shall be on the Statertwdstrate that it has maintained substantial canpé
with this Consent Decreefor at least two years.

b. The United States and the State may jointly ntouerminate this Decree prior to the expiration o
the fiveyear period referenced in subparagrapif {ag Independent Monitor finds that the State has
been in substantial compliance with the terms isf Brecree for a period of no less than two yeang T
United States shall not unreasonably refuse to qmmty with the State for termination of this Dee.

c. For the purposes of this paragraph, "substariapliance” means there has been performance of th
material terms of the Decree. Materiality shalde¢ermined by reference to the overall objectivies o
the Decree. Noncompliance with mere technicalibesemporary failure to comply during a period of
otherwise sustained compliance, will not constifatiire to maintain substantial compliance. At the
same time, temporary compliance during a perioatloérwise sustained noncompliance shall not
constitute substantial compliance.

132. No changes, modifications, or amendmentsisf@bnsent Decree shall be effective unless the
Court orders them.

133. The parties agree to defend the provisionkisiConsent Decree. The parties shall notify ¢
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other of any court or administrative challengehis Consent Decree. In the event any provisioinisf t
Consent Decree is challenged in any local or siaet, removal to a federal court shall be sought.

134. In the event any provision of this ConsentrBeds declared invalid for any reason by a colurt o
competent jurisdiction, said finding shall not atféhe remaining provisions of this Consent Decree.

We consent and seek entry of this Consent Decree:
FOR THE PLAINTIFF, THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA:

JANET RENO
Attorney General

ROBERT J. CLEARY
United States Attorney
District of New Jersey

BILL LANN LEE

Acting Assistant Attorney Attorney General
Civil Rights Division

U.S. Department of Justice

SUSAN C. CASSELL

Deputy Chief

Civil Division

United States Attorney
District of New Jersey

970 Broad Street,¥Floor
Federal Building
Newark, New Jersey 071
973/645-2700

STEVEN H. ROSENBAUM
Chief

MARK A. POSNER

KELLI M. EVANS

Trial Attorneys

Special Litigation Section
Civil Rights Division

U.S. Department of Justice
P.O. Box 66400
Washington, D.C. 20035-6400
202/307-1388

FOR THE DEFENDANTS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, and DIMIN OF STATE POLICE, NEW
JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY:

JOHN J. FARMER, JR.

Attorney General
State of New Jers:
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Hughes Justice Complex, 8 West
25 Market Street

Post Office Box 081

Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0085
609/292-4925

COLONEL CARSON DUNBAR
Superintendent

New Jersey State Pol

P.O. Box 7068

West Trenton, New Jersey
(609) 882-2000

SO ORDERED this 30th day of December 30, 1999.

MARY L. COOPER
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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